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Re:  Statement of Debt Affordability 

Dear Sirs and Madams:     
 
Pursuant to Chapter 16 of the Laws of 1997 of the State of New York, which includes 

the New York City Transitional Finance Authority Act (the "Act"), I am providing the annual 
statement of debt affordability.  This statement does not constitute the annual declaration of 
need pursuant to Section 2799-ff of the Act, which will be prepared following adoption of 
the City of New York’s (the “City’s”) fiscal year 2021 Budget by the City Council.   

 
In order to finance projects within its Capital Budget, the City currently has a capital 

financing need of up to $7.6 billion, $9.2 billion, $10.8 billion and $11.5 billion, in fiscal 
years 2021 through 2024, respectively.  To the extent that General Obligation Bonds are 



issued to finance such projects, the capital financing need to be met by the issuance of future 
tax-secured bonds (“FTS”) of the New York City Transitional Finance Authority (“TFA”) 
would be reduced accordingly.  The City currently expects to issue General Obligation bonds 
to provide funding for approximately half of such four year financing program.  In addition 
to these amounts, the City has a capital financing need of $394 million, $178 million, $155 
million and $201 million in fiscal years 2021 through 2024, respectively, for those projects 
within the City’s Five-Year Educational Facilities Capital Plan. Some or all of these projects 
are expected to be financed with proceeds of TFA Building Aid Revenue Bonds.   

 
There is no reserve or surplus fund held by TFA as of the date of this statement and 

there was none as of the end of the most recently completed fiscal year.  The TFA’s Debt 
Service Fund contained and contains amounts in excess of minimum retention requirements, 
which amounts are applied to make debt service payments during the City’s Financial Plan 
period. 

 
Schedule A shows the City’s and TFA’s debt-incurring power, excluding Building Aid 

Revenue Bond financing capacity.  Schedule B presents the sources of financing for the 
City's four-year capital program.  Schedule C specifies amounts of debt service payable on 
City General Obligation bonds and TFA FTS bonds, amounts expected to be outstanding in 
each of the Financial Plan years for General Obligation and TFA FTS bonds, and various 
debt service and debt ratios as required by the Act.  Schedule C provides a framework for 
assessing the affordability to the City of the debt to be issued as described on Schedule B.  

 
In my opinion, debt affordability is a judgment made by balancing the City's need for 

essential capital improvements and the costs of delaying or not implementing such 
improvements against the impact of debt service costs arising from the financing of those 
capital needs on the other competing City priorities funded through the City's operating 
budget.  The judgment is reflected in the City's Financial Plan and in its operating budget and 
Capital Plan as proposed by the Mayor, which has the result, in fiscal year 2024, of debt 
service (including the TFA FTS and lease (conduit) debt service) requiring 9.3 percent of 
total revenues and 13.4 percent of total tax revenues. 

 
 

          Sincerely,  

 

 

Kenneth Godiner  

 
 
 
 

Attachments 
 

Kenneth J. Godiner (May 1, 2020)
Kenneth J. Godiner

https://nycmomb.na2.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAADixbVtQpogyvSXQKhH7eWQRIe9YdAEUC


Schedule A: Debt Incurring Power ($ in Millions)

NYC Debt and Contract Liabilities 

FY 2021 2022 2023 2024
As of June 30

Total City Debt- Incurring Power under General Debt Limit ## 123,034$    131,061$    138,942$  149,571$  

       Gross Debt-Funded ## 40,200        42,355        45,165      48,191      

       Less: Excluded Debt ## (30)              (27)              (18)            (16)            

## 40,171        42,328        45,147      48,175      

      Contracts and Other Liabilities, Net of Prior Financings Thereof ## 20,023        24,914        28,632      30,961      

Total City Indebtedness ## 60,194        67,242        73,780      79,136      

      TFA Debt Outstanding above $13.5 billion - 29,161        32,216        36,023      39,983      

Combined Debt-Incurring Power of NYC and TFA ## 33,679$      31,603$      29,140$    30,451$    



Schedule B: Sources of Funds ($ in Millions)
FY 2021 2022 2023 2024

City General Obligation Bonds 3,820$        4,580$        5,420$      5,760$      
TFA Future Tax Secured Bonds 3,820          4,580          5,420        5,760        
TFA Building Aid Revenue Bonds 394             178             155           201           
Water Authority Bonds 1,571          1,611          1,549        1,617        
Total 9,605$        10,949$      12,544$    13,338$    

Note: includes new money bonds and notes for capital purposes and, 
with respect to the Water Authority, reserve amounts. 



Schedule C: Debt Outstanding & Debt Service Ratios

I. Debt Service of NYC GO, Conduit Debt & TFA ($ in millions) 2021 2022 2023 2024
[l.1] NYC General Obligation Debt Service* $4,008 $4,310 $4,640 $4,966
[l.2] Conduit Debt Debt Service $125 $125 $148 $118
[l.3] Transitional Finance Authority Debt Service* $3,257 $3,591 $3,945 $4,082
[l.4] Total Debt Service (NYC GO, Conduit Debt & TFA)= [l.1] + [l.2] + [l.3] $7,390 $8,027 $8,732 $9,166

Total Debt Service (NYC GO, Conduit Debt & TFA) [l.4] as % of:
a. Total Revenue** 8.3% 8.5% 9.0% 9.3%
b. Total Taxes** 12.2% 12.4% 13.0% 13.4%
c. Total NYC Personal Income 1.1% 1.1% 1.2% 1.2%

NYC General Obligation Bonds Debt Service [l.1] as % of:
d. Real Property Tax Revenue 13.0% 13.5% 14.1% 14.9%
e. Full Value of Taxable Real Estate 0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3%

II. Debt Outstanding: NYC GO, Conduit Debt & TFA  ($ in millions) as of 6/30

[l.5] NYC General Obligation Debt Outstanding $40,460 $42,734 $45,692 $48,870
[l.6] Conduit Debt Debt Outstanding $995 $929 $838 $769
[l.7] Transitional Finance Authority Debt Outstanding $42,948 $45,863 $49,523 $53,483
[l.8] Total Debt Outstanding (NYC GO, Conduit Debt & TFA ) [l.5]+[l.6]+[l.7] $84,403 $89,526 $96,053 $103,123

Total Debt Outstanding (NYC GO, Conduit Debt & TFA) [l.8] as % of:
f. Total NYC Personal Income 12.6% 12.6% 13.2% 13.7%

NYC General Obligation Debt Outstanding [l.5] as % of:
g. Real Property Tax Revenue 131.2% 133.9% 139.2% 146.9%
h. Five Year Average Full Value of Taxable Real Estate 3.3% 3.3% 3.3% 3.3%

III. Debt Service & Debt Outstanding Per Capita ($ in thousands)

i. Debt Service Per Capita (NYC GO+Conduit Debt+TFA DS) $0.880 $0.956 $1.040 $1.091
j. Debt Outstanding Per Capita (NYC GO+Conduit Debt+TFA) $10.049 $10.659 $11.437 $12.278

a. Total Revenue $89,332 $94,398 $97,439 $98,768
b. Total Taxes $60,436 $64,784 $67,275 $68,560
c. PIT Required to Support TFA DS*** $692 $3,591 $3,945 $4,082
d. Total NYC Personal Income $669,560 $708,300 $726,320 $753,150
e. Real Property Tax Revenue $30,834 $31,906 $32,831 $33,260
f. Full Value of Taxable Real Estate $1,230,335 $1,310,609 $1,389,424 $1,495,707
g. Population 8,398,748   8,398,748   8,398,748 8,398,748 

*   Does not reflect prepayments.
** Includes amount required to support TFA debt service.
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